
Traffic Safety Committee 04-21-16  1  
 

TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  
THURSDAY, APRIL 21, 2016 

SELECTBOARD MEETING ROOM – 8:00AM 
MINUTES 

 
 
Members present:  Town Manager Peter Elwell, Planning Director Rod Francis, Public Works Director 
Steve Barrett, Police Captain Mark Carignan, Citizen Representative Louise Zak, and School 
Representative Betsy Gentile. 
 
Selectboard Representative:  David Gartenstein. 
 
Other staff members present:  Assistant Town Manager Patrick Moreland and Highway/Utilities 
Superintendent Hannah O’Connell. 
 
Others present:  James Banslaben, Emma Owings, and others who did not sign the attendance sheet. 
 
Town Manager Peter Elwell called the meeting to order at 8:01am.   
 
Approve Minutes – March 17, 2016 

Elwell asked if anyone had corrections to the March 17 minutes.  There was no discussion. 

MOTION BY ROD FRANCIS, AND SECONDED BY BETSY GENTILE, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES 
FROM MARCH 17 AS PREPARED.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Public Participation – None. 

Monthly Report on Pedestrian and Bicycle Incidents – Captain Carignan reported that since the last 
meeting, 68 vehicle collisions were reported, 59 of which had vehicle damage only, and 9 involved 
personal injuries.  There was 1 pedestrian collision with moderate injuries and 2 bicycle/moped accidents.  
He said that a bicycle ran into car and the rider was not hurt, and the moped driver sustained some 
injures.  He said that the moped driver was heading north on Canal Street and was in a line of stopped 
traffic.  When the moped driver tried to pass the stopped cars on the right, a car ahead of him made a 
right turn and hit the moped.  Captain Carignan reported that the moped driver was at fault.  There was 
some discussion about moped regulations. 

Monthly Report on Traffic Data Collection – Highway/Utilities Superintendent O’Connell reported that the 
radar sign on Western Ave near Greenleaf Street reported an average speed of 27mph, the 85th 
percentile was 31mph, and the average volume of vehicles was 5,551 per day.  She reported that the 
radar sign on Cedar Street near the Outing Club entrance (heading toward Route 30) reported an 
average speed of 26mph (the posted speed was 25mph), the 85th percentile was 36mph, and the 
number of vehicles per day was 3,000.  There was a brief discussion. 

Pedestrian Push Buttons 
(a) Anna Marsh Lane and Linden Street in Partnership with Brattleboro Retreat 
(b)   Western Avenue in Partnership with Holton Home 

O’Connell said that this committee had previously discussed concerns about pedestrian crossing 
accidents and she did some research into pedestrian pushbutton devices and other tools used to reduce 
vehicle/pedestrian accidents.  She reported very favorable data and high success rates on the use of 
pedestrian pushbutton devices and said that the cost for each device was $7,500-$8,000.  The committee 
briefly discussed the purpose and success of the devices and agreed that a public relations campaign on 
the use of the devices may be helpful to users. 

Pedestrian Pushbutton Devices on Western Avenue in Partnership with Holton Home.  Emma Owings, 
from Holton Home, spoke about the need for a pedestrian pushbutton device for the elderly residents of 
Holton Home to cross Western Avenue in front of the Home.  She said that the Home was a nonprofit 
organization and may not be able to contribute to the cost of the device, as was the case with other 
partnerships around Town, but would be able to look for grants or other funding sources to partnership 



Traffic Safety Committee 04-21-16  2  
 

with the Town in installing a pushbutton device.  O’Connell said that the site had been reviewed by the 
Public Works Department and the Department supported installing a device at that location.  There was 
much discussion about the devices, location of such devices, crosswalk regulations, traffic enforcement, 
other locations with higher pedestrian traffic, and having a systematic approach to prioritize installation of 
such devices.  Barrett said that this committee reviewed a list of possible site locations last year, and it 
was agreed that an updated list would be helpful in considering future locations.   

MOTION BY PETER ELWELL, AND SECONDED BY LOUISE ZAK, TO APPROVE THE 
INSTALLATION WHEN FUNDING IS AVAILABLE A PUSH BUTTON PEDESTRIAN SIGNAL AT THE 
CROSS WALK THAT IS ADJACENT TO THE HOLTON HOME.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Pedestrian Pushbutton Devices at Anna Marsh Lane and Linden Street in Partnership with Brattleboro 
Retreat.  Barrett said that he met with representatives from the Retreat to review the proposed location of 
a pedestrian pushbutton device at the current crosswalk location.  He said there were serious concerns 
about the current location, including lack of good line of sight for traffic coming from Route 30.  He said 
there was discussion about an alternative location for the crosswalk which would be moved closer to the 
Retreat Farm and be better situated for the pedestrians coming from the residential units across from the 
Retreat.  He said that he contacted an engineer to review moving the crosswalk to make sure the 
crosswalk and pushbutton device would be properly located, and that the study would be funded by the 
Retreat.  He said that the Retreat owned the blinking light and private street light located at the current 
location.  He said that representatives from the Retreat would look into the existing lights and would 
probably be ready to report back to the Committee in June.  There was a brief discussion by the 
Committee. 

Traffic Calming Plan Safety Action Items 
(a) Harris Avenue & Wantastiquet Drive.  O’Connell said that citizens in the area of Harris Avenue 
and Wantastiquet Drive had voiced concerns about pedestrian activity on those streets, having no 
sidewalks, the traffic speed, traffic to the Bradley House, pedestrians in the roadway, exiting traffic from 
the Bradley House, and seeking signage or other action to improve safety in the area.  She said that 
Windham Regional Commission recently performed a traffic study on Harris Avenue and reported that the 
average volume was 85 vehicles per day, the average speed 20mph, and the 85th percentile was 25mph.  
She said that last year a traffic study had been performed on Wantastiquet Drive and the average volume 
of traffic was 138 vehicles per day, the average speed was 22mph, and the 85th percentile was 28mph.  
She said that there was very little room for improvement in that area due to factors such as the width of 
the road, site visibility limitations, geography and topography issues, and possible sign clutter on the 
street.  She said that the speed limit was set by State standards and could not be lowered.  She 
suggested speaking with representatives from the Bradley House to encourage their patients and families 
to wear visible clothing/vests, carry blinking pedestrian LED lights, and be aware of traffic.  She said that 
the intersection at Wantastiquet and Harris was wide, not uniform, and uncontrolled.  She said that a 
professional engineer could be engaged in the future to revise the intersection and make it more uniform 
and predictable.  There was discussion by the Committee about the area and asking administration to 
speak with representatives from the Bradley House to encourage installation of signs on its property, 
requiring exiting traffic to stop, and encouraging drivers to drive cautiously.  Gartenstein suggested 
making proper signage a condition of the Development Review Board approval. 
 

MOTION BY ROD FRANCIS, AND SECONDED BY BETSY GENTILE, THAT THE DEPARTMENT OF 
PUBLIC WORKS PURSUES THE OPPORTUNITIES TO HAVE AN ENGINEERING STUDY DONE FOR 
THE INTERSECTION OF WANTASTIQUET [DRIVE] AND HARRIS [AVENUE], AND THAT THE 
PLANNING SERVICES DEPARTMENT MAKES COMMENT TO THE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 
BOARD THAT UNDER SIGHT PLAN REVIEW CONSIDERATION BE GIVEN FOR APPROPRIATE 
SIGNAGE FOR VEHICLES ENTERING THE PUBLIC WAY FROM THE BRADLEY HOUSE. 

Elwell offered a friendly amendment, and Francis accepted, to add that the Committee recommended that 
no further actions be taken at this time. 

AMENDED MOTION BY ROD FRANCIS, AND SECONDED BY BETSY GENTILE, THAT THE 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS PURSUES THE OPPORTUNITIES TO HAVE AN ENGINEERING 
STUDY DONE FOR THE INTERSECTION OF WANTASTIQUET [DRIVE] AND HARRIS [AVENUE], 



Traffic Safety Committee 04-21-16  3  
 

AND THAT THE PLANNING SERVICES DEPARTMENT MAKES COMMENT TO THE DEVELOPMENT 
REVIEW BOARD THAT UNDER SIGHT PLAN REVIEW CONSIDERATION BE GIVEN FOR 
APPROPRIATE SIGNAGE FOR VEHICLES ENTERING THE PUBLIC WAY FROM THE BRADLEY 
HOUSE, AND THAT THE [TRAFFIC SAFETY] COMMITTEE RECOMMENDED THAT NO FURTHER 
ACTIONS BE TAKEN AT THIS TIME.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Downtown Traffic Lights 

Barrett provided an overview of the downtown traffic lights report  that was recently presented to the 
Selectboard.  He said that during the sidewalk reconstruction project last year, the lights were put on flash 
and some members of the public preferred that system.  He said that the original engineer was asked to 
re-evaluate the system and reported that lights were working as designed and improved the traffic flow at 
the Lower Main Street intersection.  He said that the Board and staff recommended not making significant 
changes to the system.  Elwell said that the Selectboard voted not to make significant changes to the 
system but agreed to try some minor adjustments.  He said that the Selectboard agreed that there were 
some negative impacts around the system but the positive impacts and pedestrian safety were much 
greater.  Barrett said that the pedestrian pushbutton were often out of service due to failure of the buttons 
because of weather and other factors. 

There was discussion by the Committee about exiting traffic from the Food Co-Op, frequent failure of 
pedestrian pushbuttons, and the traffic light system in general.  Barrett said that the engineers reported 
that the Lower Main Street intersection would fail if the current system were changed significantly and 
would then preclude the Town from receiving State funding.  Carignan reported that even though the 
Lower Main Street intersection was awkward, there was a very low rate of collision at the intersection.  

Zak asked for a second opinion on the downtown traffic light study, to include keeping the Main Street 
lights on flash mode and the exclusivity of the pedestrian crossing devices.  She said that although the 
study may be data driven, she questioned whether the system was actually functioning well.   

Gartenstein said that the Selectboard asked for the traffic study and reviewed the operation of the 
system.  He said that the Board reviewed the study thoroughly and made the decision to proceed with the 
current system, and he would not support another study.  James Banslaben spoke against spending 
funds for another study and asked if the removal of parking meters on Main Street to improve traffic flow 
was included in the study. 

MOTION BY ROD FRANCIS, AND SECONDED BY BETSY GENTILE, THAT THE COMMITTEE SET 
ASIDE FURTHER CONSIDERATION OF TRAFFIC SIGNALS AT LOWER MAIN STREET AND AWAIT 
THE INSTALLATION OF REPLACEMENT OF PUSH BUTTONS FOR THE PEDESTRIAN 
CROSSWALKS  BEFORE TAKING THE MATTER UP AGAIN.   

Elwell said that the study was broader than just the Lower Main Street intersection, and asked if Francis 
would agree to expand the motion to apply to the entire traffic light system downtown. 

Zak offered a friendly amendment to set aside a certain period of time after the improved traffic signals 
had been installed for the Committee to review the issue again to see if the lights were working better.  
Francis accepted Elwell’s suggestion to expand his motion to include the entire system, but did not accept 
Zak’s amendment.  He suggested that if there was cumulative evidence and continued public criticism of 
the downtown intersection after 12 months that the topic be reconsidered then.  He said that if the new 
Hinsdale Bridge were to be installed, the traffic pattern at the intersection would change dramatically.   

AMENDED MOTION BY ROD FRANCIS, AND SECONDED BY BETSY GENTILE, THAT COMMITTEE 
SET ASIDE FURTHER CONSIDERATION OF THE ENTIRE DOWNTOWN TRAFFIC LIGHTS AND 
AWAIT THE INSTALLATION OF REPLACEMENT OF PUSH BUTTONS FOR THE PEDESTRIAN 
CROSSWALKS BEFORE TAKING THE MATTER UP AGAIN.  MOTION CARRIED 5-1 (ZAK 
OPPOSED). 



Traffic Safety Committee 04-21-16  4  
 

Other Business 
 
Gartenstein said that the speed indicator at Green Street had not worked properly for some time and 
asked if the device could be removed.  Barrett said that would continue to try contacting the 
manufacturing company and suggested that the device may shut off until fixed. 
 
There was no further business. 
 
ELWELL ADJOURNED THE MEETING AT 9:25AM. 
 


